
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
Minutes

August 19, 2015 5
Payroll

Payroll/Overtime Report 8
Warrants

Accounts Payable 11
Agreement for Labor Compliance Services for the Residential
Water Meter Project

Staff Report - LCP Consultant 21
Amending Resolution No. 14-47 Relating to Municipal Utility
Guidelines During Drought Emergency to Allow Exemption for
Kerman Unified School District School Sports and Recreation
Fields to Provide for the Public Health and Safety of Users

Staff Report - KUSD 35
Letter of Request from Robert D. Epperson, Kerman Planning
Commission Chairman  Regarding Commissioner
Compensation

Letter of Request 39
Resolution Approving a Lieutenant's Position and Amending the
Public Safety Employee Salary Scale to Include the Rank of
Lieutenant

Staff Report - Public Safety Employees Salary Scale 40

1



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, September 2, 2015 

6:30 PM 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET AVAILABLE FOR  
REVIEW 72 HOURS PRIOR TO  

THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING AT  
THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AND  

ON THE CITY WEBSITE 
ITEMS RECEIVED AT THE 

MEETING WILL BE AVAILABLE  
FOR REVIEW AT THE CITY  

CLERK’S OFFICE  

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

ALL MEETING ATTENDEES ARE ADVISED THAT ALL PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND ANY OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES SHOULD BE POWERED OFF UPON ENTERING THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

AS THESE DEVICES INTERFERE WITH OUR AUDIO EQUIPMENT. 
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

• Welcome – Mayor  
• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 

At this time the Council wishes to provide anyone an opportunity to give a brief invocation or 
inspirational thought. In accordance with law, we would request this opportunity not be used to 
recruit converts, to advance anyone, or to disparage any other faith or belief. If no one steps 
forward, we will observe a moment of silence so that we may all focus our thoughts on how best 
to serve our community. 

 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 

To accommodate members of the public or convenience in the order of presentation, items on 
the agenda may not be presented or acted upon in the order listed. 

 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 

A. Katey's Kids Park Project Update (PG) 
 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for members of the public to address the Council on items 
of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Council. Speakers shall be limited to three minutes. It is requested that no comments be made 
during this period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the Council 
on items on the Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called, and the 
Mayor will recognize your discussion at that time. It should be noted that the Council is 
prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. 
Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address. 

2



 
2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
a member of the audience or a Council Member may request an item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and it will be considered separately. 

 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: August 19, 2015   
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

Payroll Report: August 2, 2015 - August 15, 2015: $130,370.34; Retro Pay: 624.12; 
Other: $7,813.93; Overtime: $6,093.59; Standby: $1,381.01; Comp Time Earned: 63.75      
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Payroll/Overtime Report 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 

1.  Nos 7011-7090:  $244,568.66 
2.  Excepting - Sebastian 7032 $150.00 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers as 
presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Accounts Payable 
 

D. SUBJECT: Agreement for Labor Compliance Services for the Residential Water Meter 
Project (JJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving agreement for 
labor compliance services with Richard Perez dba Labor Consultants of California for the 
Residential Water Meter Project.     
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - LCP Consultant     
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
 None 
 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 

A. SUBJECT: Presentation from Kerman Unified School District on Building Projects and 
Water Conservation (MR) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council receive presentation. 

3



B. SUBJECT: Amending Resolution No. 14-47 Relating to Municipal Utility Guidelines During 
Drought Emergency to Allow Exemption for Kerman Unified School District School 
Sports and Recreation Fields to Provide for the Public Health and Safety of Users (JK) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution amending Resolution No. 14-
47 Relating to Municipal Utility Guidelines During Drought Emergency to allow 
exemption for Kerman Unified School District school sports and recreation fields to 
provide for the public health and safety of users. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - KUSD   
 

C. SUBJECT: Letter of Request from Robert D. Epperson, Kerman Planning Commission 
Chairman Regarding Commissioner Compensation (MR) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council review letter of request and direct staff accordingly. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Letter of Request   
 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving a Lieutenant's Position and Amending the Public Safety 
Employee Salary Scale to Include the Rank of Lieutenant (JKB) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving a Lieutenant’s 
position and amending the Public Safety Employee Salary Scale to include the rank of 
Lieutenant. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Public Safety Employees Salary Scale    
 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

A. Kerman Harvest Festival – September 17-20 
• Opening Ceremonies – Thursday, September 17, 7:15 p.m. Kerckoff Park 
• Parade – Saturday, September 19, 10 a.m. 

 
7. CLOSED SESSION 

 
A. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 - Public Employee 

Appointment/Employment Title: City Manager 
 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559) 846-9380. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City Clerk to make reasonable arrangement to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically handicapped. 

 

4



MINUTES 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, August 19, 2015 

6:30 PM 
 

  
 

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

Present: Mayor Hill (SH) Rhonda Armstrong (RA) Gary Yep (GY), Fox (NF), Nijjer (BN) 
Absent: None 
Also Present: Interim City Manager Kunkel, City Attorney Cantú, Chief of Police, 
Community Services Director, Finance Director, Public Works Director, City Engineer 

Voting: Yes, 
No, Absent 
(Abstain if 
needed) 

OPENING CEREMONIES  

• Welcome – Mayor   

• Call to Order 6:32 p.m. 

• Roll Call All present 
except BN 

• Invocation SH 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  Performed 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS Approved 
GY/RA  
(4-0-1) BN 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 

6:38 p.m.  
BN arrived 

A. Swearing In of New Reserve Officers Matthew Beye, Ray Raigoza and Jose 
Valdovinos (JKB) 

Performed 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL None 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
Payroll Report: July 19 - August 1, 2015; $138,055.25; Overtime: $4,300.10; 
Standby: $1,241.15; Comp Time Earned: 11.25      
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved 
GY/BN 
excepting 
6964, 6998, 
6999, 6975 
(5-0-0) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5



C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 

1. Nos. 6910 - 7010: $175,714.72 
2. Excepting - Sebastian: 6964 - $2,673.38; 6998 -$260.00; 6999 - $417.29 
 Valley Food Center: 6975 - $44.28     
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers 
as presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 

Approved 
6964, 6998, 
6999 NF/GY 
(4-0-1) RA 
employee 
Approved 
6975 NF/RA 
(4-0-1) GY 
part owner 
 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Agreement with San Joaquin Valley Railroad 
for the Goldenrod Avenue Crossing (JJ) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving 
agreement with San Joaquin Valley Railroad for the improvement of the 
Goldenrod Avenue crossing and authorize the interim City Manager to sign the 
agreement on behalf of the City.     

Res 15-45 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS None 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 

 

A. SUBJECT: First Reading and Introduction of Ordinance Adding Section 17.94 to 
Title 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code To Comply with AB2188 Regarding 
Expedited Permit Processing For Small Residential Roof Top Solar Systems (OP) 

Approved 
GY/NF  
(5-0-0) 
Set PH Sept 
16, 2015 

RECOMMENDATION: Council introduce and waive further reading of 
Ordinance adding section 17.94 to Title 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code to 
comply with AB 2188 regarding expedited permitting procedures for small 
residential roof top solar and set a public hearing for September 16, 2015. 

 

B. SUBJECT: Interim Urgency Ordinance Enacted Pursuant to California 
Government Code Section 65858 Temporarily Prohibiting the Establishment of 
Businesses Offering Massages Pending Study and Adoption of Regulatory and 
Zoning Standards (JK/HCM) 

Approved 
GY/NF  
(5-0-0)  
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt the Interim Urgency Ordinance 
Temporarily Prohibiting the Establishment of Businesses Offering Massages 
Pending Study and Adoption of Regulatory and Zoning Standards. 

Ord. 15-02 

C. SUBJECT: Resolution Urging the State to Provide New Sustainable Funding for 
State and Local Transportation Infrastructure (JK) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution urging Governor and 
Legislature to identity a sufficient and stable funding source for local street and 
road and state highway maintenance and rehabilitation. 

Approved 
SH/RA 
subject to 
recitals, facts 
and circum-
stances  
(5-0-0) 
 
 
 
Res 15-46 
 

6



D. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Agreement for Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) Funds for the Kerman Soroptimist Park ADA Restroom 
Improvements Project (JJ) 

Approved 
GY/NF  
(5-0-0)  
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt the resolution approving the 
agreement for Community Development Block Grant funds for the Kerman 
Soroptimist Park ADA Restroom Improvements Project No. 15371. 
 

Res 15-47 

E. SUBJECT: Resolution Amending Purchasing Policy Relating to Personnel 
Consulting Services (JK) 

Approved 
RA/BN  
(5-0-0) 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution amending the City 
Purchasing Policy relating to Personnel Consulting Services. 
 

Res 15-48 

4. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 

5. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

 

6. CLOSED SESSION 
 

None 

7. ADJOURNMENT 7:28 p.m. 
Approved 
GY/RA (5-0-0)  

 

 

MINUTES CERTIFICATION 

 
I,   MARCI REYES, City Clerk for the City of Kerman, do hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the 
above Minutes are a true depiction of all actions taken at the City Council meeting held on the first date 
above written at Kerman City Hall, 850 S. Madera Ave, Kerman, CA. 

         Date:  
 
         ____________________ 
         Marci Reyes 
         City Clerk 
 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



    
 
 

 City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: SEPTEMBER 2, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jerry Jones, City Engineer 
Subject: Agreement for Labor Compliance Services for the Residential Water Meter Project 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution approving agreement for labor compliance services with Richard Perez dba Labor 
Consultants of California for the Residential Water Meter Project.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
The City has received Proposition 84 Grant funding for the installation of residential water meters. As a requirement 
of Proposition 84 funding, the City must have a Labor Compliance Program (LCP) that has been approved by the 
Department of Industrial Relations (DIR). The Labor Compliance Program outlines the required procedures for 
monitoring and enforcing prevailing wage requirements and other labor compliance requirements. The City has 
received a proposal from Labor Consultants of California (Consultant) for the development of the LCP, preparation of 
the application to DIR, and implementation of the LCP during construction. The Consultant’s proposal includes a not 
to exceed fee in the amount of $1,125 for the development of the LCP and application, and time and materials fees at 
$75.00 per hour, not to exceed 30 hours per month ($2,250) for implementation of the LCP during construction. It is 
anticipated that construction will last 3 to 4 months.   
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
In a continued effort to install water meters on all services throughout the City, Staff applied for and the City was 
awarded Proposition 84 Grant funding in the amount of $724,934 for installation of approximately 665 water meters. 
As a requirement specific to Proposition 84 Grant funding, the City must have an approved LCP and implement the 
LCP during construction. The City Engineer enlisted the services of a consultant experienced in the development of 
Labor Compliance Programs, Labor Consultants of California, with the intent that the Consultant would develop the 
LCP and implementation of the program during construction would be performed by Staff. The Consultant prepared 
the LCP and it was approved by Council on February 4, 2015. The LCP and application was submitted to DIR on 
February 19, 2015.  
 
The City has been informed by DIR that they prefer the LCP be implemented by the Consultant who developed it, 
primarily due to the high level of experience the Consultant has with LCP development and implementation. In addition, 
they want the Consultant to be contracted directly with the City, not with the Contract City Engineer. Typically, the City 

21



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 14 
Agreement for Labor Compliance Services 
  
Engineer monitors and enforces labor compliance, primarily prevailing wage requirements, on public works projects. 
The LCP and Consultant will only be utilized for the Residential Water Meter Project and any future projects funded 
by Proposition 84. The City has only received one Proposition 84 Grant to date. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The cost of labor compliance, including development and implementation of the LCP, is included in the budget for the 
Residential Water Meter Project. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Not Required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution w/Exhibits 
 

 
  

22



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 14 
Agreement for Labor Compliance Services 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
APPROVING AGREEMENT FOR LABOR COMPLIANCE SERVICES WITH 

RICHARD PEREZ DBA LABOR CONSULTANTS OF CALIFORNIA FOR THE 
RESIDENTIAL WATER METER PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, there are important and substantial State of California labor compliance and monitoring requirements 

applicable to public works projects funded by Proposition 84 (Safe Drinking Water, Water Quality and Supply, Flood Control, 
River and Coastal Protection Bond Act of 2006); and 

WHEREAS, the State of California requires that an awarding body that elects to use Proposition 84 funds for public 
works projects shall initiate and enforce, or contract with a third party to initiate and enforce, a Labor Compliance Program; and  

WHEREAS; the City of Kerman has been awarded, and intends to utilize, Proposition 84 funds for the Residential 
Water Meter Project; and 

WHEREAS, the City has received a proposal from Richard Perez DBA Labor Consultants of California to provide labor 
compliance services for the Residential Water Meter Project; and 

WHEREAS; Richard Perez DBA Labor Consultants of California is experienced in the development and 
implementation of Labor Compliance Programs; and 

WHEREAS; Richard Perez DBA Labor Consultants of California has previously prepared a Labor Compliance Program 
for the City; and 

WHEREAS; the City Engineer has reviewed the proposal and recommends that Richard Perez DBA Labor Consultants 
of California be selected to provide labor compliance services for the Residential Water Meter Project. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN RESOLVES as follows: 
1. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated herein by reference. 
2. Upon the recommendation of the City Engineer, Richard Perez dba Labor Consultants of California is hereby 

selected to provide labor compliance services for the Residential Water Meter Project in accordance with their 
proposal dated August 25, 2015. 

3. The City Manager is authorized to sign the City’s standard form of agreement for consultant services, attached as 
Exhibit ‘1’. 

4. This resolution shall be effective upon adoption. 
 
 
 
 

23



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 14 
Agreement for Labor Compliance Services 
  

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 2nd 
day of September, 2015, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 

 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
             
       Stephen B. Hill  

Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
                                                                  
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 
  

24



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 14 
Agreement for Labor Compliance Services 
  

Exhibit ‘1’

 

25



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 14 
Agreement for Labor Compliance Services 
  

26



City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 14 
Agreement for Labor Compliance Services 
  

27



City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 14 
Agreement for Labor Compliance Services 
  

28



City Council Staff Report   Page 9 of 14 
Agreement for Labor Compliance Services 
  

29



City Council Staff Report   Page 10 of 14 
Agreement for Labor Compliance Services 
  

30



City Council Staff Report   Page 11 of 14 
Agreement for Labor Compliance Services 
  

31



City Council Staff Report   Page 12 of 14 
Agreement for Labor Compliance Services 
  

32



City Council Staff Report   Page 13 of 14 
Agreement for Labor Compliance Services 
  

 
  

33



City Council Staff Report   Page 14 of 14 
Agreement for Labor Compliance Services 
  

 

34



 

 
 City of Kerman 

“Where Community Comes First” 
 

   

 

 MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: CITY MANAGER 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: SEPTEMBER 2, 2015 

  
 

To: Mayor and City Council 
From: John Kunkel, Interim City Manager 
Subject: Amending Resolution No. 14-47 Relating to Municipal Utility Guidelines During Drought Emergency to 

Allow Exemption for Kerman Unified School District School Sports and Recreation Fields to Provide for 
the Public Health and Safety of Users 

 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution amending Resolution No. 14-47 Relating to Municipal Utility Guidelines During 
Drought Emergency to allow exemption for Kerman Unified School District school sports and recreation fields to 
provide for the public health and safety of users. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
California is currently entering the fourth consecutive year of drought conditions and most of the state, including the 
City of Kerman, is experiencing exceptional drought conditions.  
 
On August 6, 2014, the City Council approved the Municipal Utility Guidelines Drought Emergency Resolution which 
included a spring/summer schedule requirement limit watering of turf to twice weekly; and a winter watering schedule 
limited to once weekly. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
At a meeting between the City and Kerman Unified School District (KUSD) on August 25, KUSD presented 
information and testimony regarding serious health and safety issues associated with conditions created by the 
limitations on outdoor watering and has requested exemptions for its sports and recreation fields. 
 
The City is concerned with the fields being unsafe for the KUSD sports and recreation field users and recommends 
the following exemptions to the drought watering requirements for KUSD: 
 

1) Sport fields, including those reserved by the public, apply sufficient irrigation water as necessary to 
maintain a safe turf playing surface. 

 
2) To pressure wash bleachers, walkways, eating areas, restrooms, and concession stands solely to 

maintain immediate healthy and safe facilities, and not for aesthetic purposes. 
  

35



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 4 
Amending Res 14-47 Guidelines During Drought Emergency  

 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The City will be working with the Kerman Unified School District to limit the watering of non-essential landscaped 
areas to comply with current City watering regulations. This exemption will allow for the District to address health 
and safety issues in regards to sports activities on turf areas. 
  
This exemption would also apply to health and safety issues associated with seating areas, restrooms and 
concession areas, not the esthetics of those areas. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
No Fiscal Impact. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None. 
 
Attachments: 

 
A. Resolution 

 
 
  

36



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 4 
Amending Res 14-47 Guidelines During Drought Emergency  

 
 

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN AMENDING RESOLUTION  
NO. 14-47 RELATING TO MUNICIPAL UTILITY GUIDELINES DURING DROUGHT EMERGENCY TO 

ALLOW EXEMPTION FOR KERMAN UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT SCHOOL SPORTS AND 
RECREATION FIELDS TO PROVIDE FOR THE PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY OF USERS  

 
WHEREAS, California is currently entering the fourth consecutive year of drought conditions and 

most of the state, including the City of Kerman is experiencing extremely serious drought conditions; and  

WHEREAS, on August 1, 2014 the Kerman City Council adopted Resolution 14-47 adopting 
Municipal Utility Guidelines During Drought Emergency;  and 

WHEREAS, on May 5, 2015, the State Water Resources Control Board adopted Resolution No. 
2015-0032 “An Emergency Regulation for statewide urban Water Conservation” which is applicable to end 
users of water and to urban water suppliers; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Kerman is an Urban Water Supplier and is subject to stringent water 
conservation requirements; and   

WHEREAS, Resolution 14-47 contains limitations on outdoor watering including limitation on dates 
and times; and  

WHEREAS, Kerman Unified School District (KUSD) has presented information and testimony 
regarding serious health and safety issues associated with conditions created by the limitations on outdoor 
watering and has requested exemptions for its sports and recreation fields; and 

WHEREAS, KUSD has presented information and testimony as to water conservation practices that 
it has implemented. 

NOW THEREFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN DOES RESOLVE as follows  

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein by reference. 

Section 2. For KUSD sports fields, KUSD is permitted to apply sufficient irrigation water as necessary 
to maintain a safe turf playing surface. Sufficient watering shall be allowed on athletic fields 
are watered enough to ensure the ground meets head impact safety standards. 

Section 3. To pressure wash bleachers, walkways, eating areas, restrooms, and concession stands 
solely to maintain immediate healthy and safe facilities, and not for aesthetic purposes. 

Section 4. This resolution shall be effective upon adoption. 

  

37



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 4 
Amending Res 14-47 Guidelines During Drought Emergency  

 
The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held 
on the 2nd day of September, 2015, and passed at said regular meeting by the following vote: 
 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby adopted. 
 
        ___________________________ 
        Stephen B. Hill 
        Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

38



39



 
 
 City of Kerman 

“Where Community Comes First” 
 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: POLICE DEPARTMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: SEPTEMBER 2, 2015 

  
  

To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Chief Joseph Blohm 
Subject: Resolution Approving a Lieutenant’s Position and Amending the Public Safety Employee Salary Scale 

to Include the Rank of Lieutenant  

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution approving a Lieutenant’s position and amending the Public Safety Employee 
Salary Scale to include the rank of Lieutenant. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
The Employment Agreement between the City and the Police Chief requires that the Chief create a Succession Plan 
within the Police Department. In response to the Council’s direction, the Chief is requesting to upgrade one sergeant 
position to the rank of lieutenant. Currently within the Police Department, there is a vacant sergrant position which 
will facilitate an internal reorganization to successfully accomplish this Succession Plan.  
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  

The Council directed the Chief to submit a succession plan for the Police Department. Succession planning is a 
process for identifying and developing people (internally or externally) with the potential to fill key leadership positions 
in a department. Succession planning is a process whereby an organization ensures that employees are developed 
or recruited to fill a key role within our agency and guarantees that we have employees on hand ready and waiting 
to fill key roles when needed. Having a Succession Plan is not a plan for the future, but more importantly a 
management approach to daily operation.  

When the Chief was hired in 2011, there were some preliminary discussions about the future development of a 
succession plan for the police department. Over the next three years, the Chief had pursued discussions with the 
City Manager(s) requesting the addition of a lieutenant position into the Police Department’s annual budget. The new 
lieutenant position would create of a mid-level management position within the Police Department that will allow the 
Chief to restructure the police organization and to realign duties and responsibilities within the department. In each 

40



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 4 
Public Safety Employee Salary Schedule 
  

of the three annual budgets that followed, the addition of the position was determined to not be feasible at that time 
due to the department/city’s financial constraints. If we are to successfully accomplish this goal, the Chief believes 
that there are two basic options that could be considered. The first option would be to add a lieutenant position to the 
Police Department’s budget. This would be a difficult task financially, since it has taken 4 years to add just one officer 
to the department. The second option and most reasonable is to upgrade one of the 5 existing sergeant positions in 
the department to a lieutenant position. The cost to upgrade would reflect an 18% increase for one sergeant position 
in the Police Department’s budget. Of the two options, the Chief believes that the upgrade of a sergeant to a lieutenant 
is the most realistic and beneficial option to create the position. The upgrading of a sergeant to a lieutenant would be 
far more economical then creating a new a lieutenant position in the department. The projected cost to upgrade the 
current vacant sergeant position in the department to a lieutenant position is an increase of 18% of that position.  

The next question would be, how do we pay the cost to increase the sergeant position to a lieutenant position?  
 
There are two options here:  
 
Option #1 would be to make a budget adjustment and add additional funds to the existing police department 2015-
16 budget.  
 
Option #2 would be for the Chief to hold the vacant sergeant position open for a short period of time to offset the 
increased cost of the lieutenant. The Chief estimates that the cost would equate to 10 weeks of vacancy. This is the 
most economical option since it there would be no cost increase to the Police Department’s operational budget this 
fiscal year. Of these two options, the Chief recommends option #2 which would hold the vacancy open for a short 
period of time to create the salary saving to offset the new position. 

The Council has expressed a desire to create a successful succession plan for the Police Department. The Chief 
truly believes that the current sergeant vacancy has given the department a golden opportunity to accomplish this 
goal this year. If the council approves the Chief’s proposal, he will immediately begin the process to recruit a qualified 
manager to begin working with him to accomplish the succession plan. The attached Exhibit ‘A’ to the resolution is a 
Public Safety Salary Scale with the projected lieutenant position included. The pay scale for the Chief, Sergeants, 
Officers, and civilian staff are accurate to the existing salary scales for those positions. Included in column B is a 
salary differential projection for each rank over the rank below so that the Council can see the pay differential between 
ranks. The Chief has discussed this issue with the City Manager and he supports this proposal.  

FISCAL IMPACT  
 
To upgrade a sergeant position to a lieutenant position, there will be an 18% increase in salary for the lieutenant. To 
offset this increase during the current fiscal year, the Chief is prepared to hold the sergeant position vacant until the 
salary saving from the vacancy offset the cost of the new lieutenant in the current fiscal year. The Chief estimates 
the position will need to remain vacant for approximately 10 weeks. Attached is a copy of the newly proposed Kerman 
PD - Public Safety Employees Salary Scale. By holding the position vacant until the salary saving are accomplished, 
then there will be no cost to the Police Department during the current fiscal year. 
 
Attachment: 
 
 A. Resolution w/Exhibit 
  

41



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 4 
Public Safety Employee Salary Schedule 
  

 
Attachment ‘A’ 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN APPROVING A  

LIEUTENANT’S POSITION AND AMENDING THE  
PUBLIC SAFETY EMPLOYEE SALARY SCHEDULE TO INCLUDE THE RANK OF LIEUTENANT 

 
 WHEREAS, the Police Chief, at the direction of the City Council, has been directed to create a Succession 
Plan within the Police Department; and 
 
 WHEREAS, succession planning is a process for identifying and developing people (internally or externally) 
with the potential to fill key leadership positions in a department; and  
 
 WHEREAS, currently within the Police Department, there is a vacant sergeant position and to accomplish 
this succession plan with the vacancy of a sergeant position the Police Chief requested to upgrade one sergeant 
position to the rank of Lieutenant. 

 
NOW THEREFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN DOES RESOLVE as follows:  
 
 SECTION 1. The City Council hereby approves and adopts the addition of a Lieutenant position and reduces 
the number of Sergeant positions by one.  
 

SECTION 2. The City Council hereby approves and adopts the proposed amended Public Safety Employee 
Salary Schedule as shown on Exhibit ‘A’ to include the rank of Lieutenant. 
 
The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 
2nd day of September, 2015, and passed at said regular meeting by the following vote: 
 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN: 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby adopted. 
 
        ___________________________ 
        Stephen B. Hill 
        Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk  

42



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 4 
Public Safety Employee Salary Schedule 
  

 
Exhibit ‘A’ 

 

 

Public Safety Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step F Step G

     Chief 20%
6,871$        7,215$        7,575$        7,954$        8,352$        8,769$        9,208$        

    Lieutenant
18%

5,717$      6,003$      6,303$      6,618$      6,949$      7,297$      7,661$      

    Sergeant 
19%

4,845$      5,087$      5,342$      5,609$      5,889$      6,184$      6,493$      

    Corporal
10%

4,061$      4,264$      4,477$      4,701$      4,936$      5,183$      5,442$      

    Police Officer 3,683$      3,867$      4,061$      4,264$      4,477$      4,701$      4,936$      

    Records Manager 2,873$      3,017$      3,167$      3,326$      3,492$      3,667$      3,850$      

    Records Clerk 2,438$      2,560$      2,688$      2,822$      2,963$      3,112$      3,267$      

    Animal Control* 2,561$      2,689$      2,824$      2,965$      3,113$      3,269$      3,350$      

    Administrative Assistant 2,873$      3,017$      3,167$      3,326$      3,492$      3,667$      3,850$      

Public Safety Employees
July 2015 - June 2016

43


	Agenda
	Minutes
	August 19, 2015

	Payroll
	Payroll/Overtime Report

	Warrants
	Accounts Payable

	Agreement for Labor Compliance Services for the Residential Water Meter Project
	Staff Report - LCP Consultant

	Amending Resolution No. 14-47 Relating to Municipal Utility Guidelines During Drought Emergency to Allow Exemption for Kerman Unified School District School Sports and Recreation Fields to Provide for the Public Health and Safety of Users
	Staff Report - KUSD

	Letter of Request from Robert D. Epperson, Kerman Planning Commission Chairman  Regarding Commissioner Compensation
	Letter of Request

	Resolution Approving a Lieutenant's Position and Amending the Public Safety Employee Salary Scale to Include the Rank of Lieutenant
	Staff Report - Public Safety Employees Salary Scale 


